
Executive Member Decisions

Friday, 21st February, 2020

AGENDA

1.  Acquisition of 3-7 Blakey Moor, Blackburn
EMD - 3-7 Blakey Moor
Part 2 EMD - 3-7 Blakey Moor
A4 Portrait 3-7 Blakey Moor
EIA-Checklist 3-7 Blakey Moor

2 - 9

Date Published: 21st February 2020 
Denise Park, Chief Executive

Public Document Pack



EMD: V4/19 Page 1 of 3

EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION
REPORT OF: Executive Member for  Finance and Governance

LEAD OFFICERS: Director of Growth and Development

DATE: 30th January 2020

PORTFOLIO/S 
AFFECTED: 

Finance and Governance                           Finance and Governance

WARD/S AFFECTED: Blackburn Central                                   

SUBJECT: Acquisition of 3-7 Blakey Moor, Blackburn.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
An opportunity has arisen for the Council to acquire 3-7 Blakey Moor Terrace, Blackburn in order to 
complete its ownership of the south side of this thoroughfare and facilitate delivery of the Townscape 
Heritage Project which provides for the regeneration of the Blakey Moor/Northgate area of the town 
centre.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Executive Member approves the acquisition of the premises known as 3-7, Blakey Moor, 
Blackburn.

3. BACKGROUND
The premises comprise a two storey retail property of brick construction with a flat asphalt roof. They 
are leased to Subway Realty Ltd. by way of lease dated 11.10.2005. for a term of 15 years from 
1.10.2005. The lease is due to expire later this year on the 31st July. Subway have already closed the 
outlet and vacated on 15.01.2020. The tenant’s agents Trevor Dawson were aware of the Council’s 
existing ownership and plans for this location and have indicated that their client is willing to sell the 
property to the Council off market. Terms have provisionally been agreed for the freehold purchase.

This provides a good opportunity for the Council to consolidate its ownership of the retail parade on 
the south side of Blakey Moor and will further assist the Council with the on-going regeneration and 
development of the town centre, creating improved links between Blackburn College and the town’s 
retail core. The purchase of these premises forms the final piece of the jigsaw as the Council will own 
the whole of the southern frontage of Blakey Moor from Northgate to no.27, Blakey Moor. Also as 
previously reported grants available under the Blakey Moor Townscape Heritage Project will enable 
enhancement works to be undertaken which will support commercial viability of existing businesses; 
create opportunities for new businesses; help to reinvigorate the towns evening and leisure economy 
and further establish this part of the town as a cultural hub.  

4. KEY ISSUES & RISKS
The acquisition of the property supports the delivery of the Blakey Moor Townscape Heritage area 
and the wider redevelopment of the Northgate area. The key issues are as follows: 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



EMD: V4/19 Page 2 of 3

 Blakey Moor terrace is identified within the Townscape Heritage Project as a ‘Priority Project’ 
and delivery of this is defined as essential by the Heritage Lottery Fund. 

 The Council has held ownership of part of the terrace, 19-27 Blakey Moor since 1998 and 11-
17 were recently acquired (leasehold interest in 11-13 Blakey Moor outstanding) .

5. POLICY IMPLICATIONS
The development of the Northgate area meets the ‘Culture and Life’ objective of the Blackburn Town 
Centre Strategy and the development of the Town centre in the Local Plan. Specifically, Policy 26 of 
the Local plan, part 2 applies and supports the delivery of the Blakey Moor Townscape heritage 
Project. The project assists the delivery of the improvements set out in the Northgate Conservation 
Area Appraisal and Management Plans. The project also delivers the Heritage priority and ambitions 
within the Council’s 12 point Plan. Moreover the project is compatible with the wider development 
area around the north of the town centre including the cinema development and NPIF investment into 
improving access across and into the town centre as set out in the December 2017 Executive Board 
report.

6. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council will receive income in the short term by way of rent up until the lease expires later this 
year at the end of September. 
The purchase will be made by the Corporate Investment Fund.

7. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The proposed transaction complies with the Council's Constitution and Local Government Acts for the 
acquisition of property interests and promotes the Council's objectives whilst achieving value for 
money.

8. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Legal and surveyor resources are required to complete the transaction.

9. EQUALITY AND HEALTH IMPLICATIONS
Please select one of the options below.  Where appropriate please include the hyperlink to the 
EIA.

Option 1    Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) not required – the EIA checklist has been completed.

Option 2    In determining this matter the Executive Member needs to consider the EIA associated 
with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA link here)

Option 3    In determining this matter the Executive Board Members need to consider the EIA 
associated with this item in advance of making the decision. (insert EIA attachment)

10. CONSULTATIONS
The Townscape Heritage Project has been consulted upon with members of the public, property 
owners, businesses and other stakeholders and this consultation informed The Detailed Scheme 
Plan, Activity Statement and Detailed Plans for Public Realm that were prepared prior to submitting 
the funding application to the Heritage Lottery Fund

Page 3



EMD: V4/19 Page 3 of 3

11. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The recommendations are made further to advice from the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 
Officer has confirmed that they do not incur unlawful expenditure.  They are also compliant with 
equality legislation and an equality analysis and impact assessment has been considered.  The 
recommendations reflect the core principles of good governance set out in the Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.

12. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
All Declarations of Interest of any Executive Member consulted and note of any dispensation granted 
by the Chief Executive will be recorded and published if applicable.

VERSION: 1

CONTACT OFFICER: STEVE DARWIN

DATE: 30th January 2020

BACKGROUND 
PAPER:

Page 4



Document is Restricted

Page 5

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



9

PH

4

HIGHER CHURCH STREET

2
6  to 12

2
6
 to

 4
0

S
h
o
p
s

5
6

FB

4
2
 to

 5
4

Town Hall

Statue

FB

Town Hall

2
1

2
3

34

TCB

Lord Street

1
9

2
5

5 7

17

New Market Street

1

11 to 15

6 to 12

3
9
 4

1

3
5

K
in

g
 W

illia
m

 S
tre

e
t

5
3

5
1

PH

18 20

4
3
 t
o
 4

9

5
5

57

6
5

115.2m

6
1

15

16

5
9

6
3

1

S
T

R
E

E
T

10

5

7LORD STREET WEST

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

12

7

GATE

LOWER COCKCROFT

1
3

2

4

19

36 to 40

29

21
 to

 2
7

PH

Higher C
ockcroft

54 to 58

44

N
o
rth

g
a
te

35

52

42

46

Post

Rising Bollard

Posts

23Car

21
19

Park

1 to 11

The Tower

PH

1

A
S
T
LE

Y

Rising Bollard

1
4

2 
to

 4

113.7m

Offices

112.5m

21

Warehouse

P
A
R

A
D
IS

E
 L

A
N

E

9

Car Park

Church & Hall

7

Library

95b
11

3 5c5

Town Hall Street

Posts

Rising Bollard

N
O

R
T

H
G

A
T

E

74

LB

TCB

11 to 17

Statue

68

3

CARDWELL
PLACE

7

Car

1

9

Park
14

20

Car

PH

29

B
A

R
T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E
T

19
BLAKEY MOOR

Park

Magistrates Court

Blackburn Darwen

and Ribble Valley

El Sub Sta

King Georges Hall

1

35

PH

31
29

37

D
U
K

E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

Victoria Centre

TCB

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

TITLE: 3-7 BLAKEY MOOR, BLACKBURN DATE :  17/02/2020

SCALE :  1:1250

REPRODUCED FROM OR BASED UPON THE ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP WITH THE SANCTION OF THE CONTROLLER OF H.M. STATIONERY OFFICE. CROWN COPYRIGHT. LICENCE NO.  077178

FOR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES ONLY

Page 8



Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council v1.0

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT CHECKLIST

This checklist is to be used when you are uncertain if your activity requires an EIA or not.

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is a tool for identifying the potential impact of the organisation’s 
policies, services and functions on its residents and staff. EIAs should be actively looking for negative or 
adverse impacts of policies, services and functions on any of the nine protected characteristics.  

The checklist below contains a number of questions/prompts to assist officers and service managers to 
assess whether or not the activity proposed requires an EIA. Supporting literature and useful questions are 
supplied within the EIA Guidance to assist managers and team leaders to complete all EIAs.

Service area 
& dept. Growth & Development Date the activity will 

be implemented 01/03/2020

 
Brief 
description 
of activity

Acquisition of 3-7 Blakey Moor, Blackburn. 

Answers 
favouring 
doing an 

EIA
Checklist question

Answers 
favouring not 
doing an EIA

Does this activity involve any of the following:
- Commissioning / decommissioning a service                - Budget changes☐  Yes
- Change to existing Council policy/strategy

☒  No

☐  Yes Does the activity impact negatively on any of the protected characteristics as 
stated within the Equality Act (2010)? ☒  No

☐  No
☐  Not sure

Is there a sufficient information / intelligence with regards to service uptake and 
customer profiles to understand the activity’s implications? ☒  Yes

Does this activity:
☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Contribute towards unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 
other conduct prohibited by the Act 
(i.e. the activity creates or increases disadvantages suffered by people due to their 
protected characteristic)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Reduce equality of opportunity between those who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not 
(i.e. the activity fail to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these 
are different from the needs of other people)

☒  No

☐  Yes
☐  Not sure

Foster poor relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not 
(i.e. the function prevents people from protected groups to participate in public life 
or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low)

☒  No

FOR = 0 TOTAL AGAINST = 6

Will you now be completing an EIA? ☐ Yes ☒ No
The EIA toolkit can be found here 

Assessment Lead Signature Steve Darwin

Checked by departmental  
E&D Lead ☒ Yes ☐ No Gwen Kinloch

Date 31/01/2020

Page 9

http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584
http://cms.intra.blackburn.gov.uk/server.php?show=nav.3584

	Agenda
	1 Acquisition of 3-7 Blakey Moor, Blackburn
	Part 2 EMD - 3-7 Blakey Moor
	A4 Portrait 3-7 Blakey Moor
	EIA-Checklist 3-7 Blakey Moor


